
Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

Date Tuesday 25 April 2017
Time 10.00 am
Venue Council Chamber, County Hall, Durham

Business

Part A

1. Apologies for Absence  
2. Substitute Members  
3. Declarations of Interest (if any)  
4. Minutes of the Meetings held on 20 December 2016, and 20 January, 

25 January and 14 February 2017  (Pages 3 - 28)
5. Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence - The Distillery, 1-2 

Red Rose Terrace, Chester-le-Street  (Pages 29 - 136)
6. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, 

is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration  

Clare Pattinson
Interim Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham
12 April 2017

To: The Members of the Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

Councillors C Carr, B Graham, J Hart, I Jewell and B Kellett

Contact: Jill Errington Tel: 03000 269703



This page is intentionally left blank



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee held in Council Chamber, County 
Hall, Durham on Tuesday 20 December 2016 at 10.00 am

Present:

Councillor C Carr (Chairman)

Members of the Committee:
Councillors I Jewell, B Kellett and P May

Also Present:
K Robson – Senior Licensing Officer
K Coulson-Patel – Solicitor, DCC
McColls, Evenwood
Mr B Holland – Applicant’s representative
Mr M Johnson – Area Manager and DPS
Bridge End Garage, Howden-le-Wear
Mr Saggu – Applicant’s representative 
Mr T Middleton – Operations Manager
 

1 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J Lee and A Hopgood.

2 Substitute Members 

There were no substitute Members.

3 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

4 Minutes 

The Minutes of the meetings held on 29 July, 16 August, 6 September and 4 
October 2016 were agreed as a correct record and were signed by the Chairman.

5 Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence - Next Door, 67 Saddler 
Street, Durham 

Members:
Councillor C Carr (Chair)
Councillors I Jewell and B Kellett

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director Adult and Health 
Services regarding an application for the grant of a Premises Licence in respect of 
Next Door, 67 Saddler Street, Durham (for copy see file of Minutes).

A copy of the application and supporting documents had been circulated to 
Members. The Senior Licensing Officer advised that since the report had been 
circulated conditions had been agreed by mediation between the Applicant and the 
objectors, a copy of which had been provided to the Sub-Committee.  The applicant 
and objectors were not in attendance. 

In considering the mediation the Chairman sought clarification with regard to 
additional condition 8, and the capacity and dimensions of the building. Members 
therefore requested that consideration of the application be deferred.

Resolved:

That the application be deferred.                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

6 Application for the Variation of a Premises Licence - McColls, 1-2 Shirley 
Terrace, Evenwood, Bishop Auckland 

Members:
Councillor C Carr (Chair)
Councillors B Kellett and P May

The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director Adult and Health 
Services regarding an application to vary the Premises Licence in respect of 
McColls, 1-2 Shirley Terrace, Evenwood (for copy see file of Minutes).

A copy of the application and supporting documents had been circulated to 
Members. The Senior Licensing Officer advised that the application was for off 
sales only.

In response to a question from the Chairman, the Senior Licensing Officer 
confirmed that the Police had been consulted on the application as a Responsible 
Authority and had not made representation.

B Holland addressed the Sub-Committee on behalf of the applicant Martin McColl 
Ltd. He explained that the company was one of the largest convenience store 
operators in the UK, with over 950 licensed premises, the majority of which were 
licensed to sell alcohol between the hours of 06:00 and 23:00. The Group had 
grown and between 50 and 60 new stores were now opening every year. The 
premises at Evenwood had been acquired from the previous owner a few weeks 
earlier and therefore the problems referred to in the representations received from 
other persons were likely to relate to the former operator.  

McColls was a newsagent chain, hence the early opening hours. Arrangements had 
been made with suppliers for deliveries to be made after 7am and discussions had 
taken place with a Senior Environmental Health Officer in relation to noise. 

Page 4



The application was for the sale of alcohol from 06:00 and this was to allow 
customers such as shift workers, who shopped at different hours, to purchase 
alcohol with their newspapers. Apart from spirits which were located behind the 
counter, alcohol was displayed on open shelving within the store and it would be 
difficult to conceal or prevent selection if the premises were not licensed from the 
opening hour.

Mr Holland referred to the comments made by the Parish Council at page 99 in the 
report that the current licensing hours were incorrect, and stated that these had 
been quoted from the previous licence. 

Mr Holland addressed the concerns made by objectors.  Traffic issues were not 
matters for the Licensing Sub-Committee, however notwithstanding this, McColls 
were experienced with dealing with concerns of this nature. Any problems 
associated with noise and youths congregating outside the premises would be 
taken seriously as they wished to maintain a good relationship with neighbours. Mr 
Holland noted the comments of Mr and Mrs Smith who were not in attendance, but 
was of the view that their concerns related to the previous management of the 
premises. 

Addressing the licensing objectives ‘Prevention of Crime and Disorder’ and 
‘Prevention of Public Nuisance’ Mr Holland referred Members to the proposed 
conditions in the operating schedule relating to the CCTV system, Challenge 25 
and staff training. Environmental Health had not requested that additional 
conditions be placed on the Premises Licence. He also made the point that the 
Police had not made representation.

In conclusion Mr Holland stated that the applicant sought to have the seasonal 
restrictions in relation to Christmas Day and Good Friday removed.

In response to a question from Councillor Carr about the floor area designated for 
the sale of alcohol, Mr Holland explained the layout of the shop floor and agreed to 
supply a plan showing exact dimensions. 

Councillor Carr noted that CCTV would not be accessed immediately on request 
and was informed that there may not be a member of staff on the premises at the 
time of request to download the images. However arrangements would be made for 
a person qualified to operate the CCTV system to attend as soon as practically 
possible. Following a request for clarification from Solicitor K Coulson-Patel, Mr 
Johnson the Area Manager confirmed that images could be viewed immediately on 
request and the system had the capacity to take screen shots. The Solicitor asked if 
the location of the CCTV cameras could be included in the plan of the shop layout 
to be provided by the applicant.

Following a further comment from Councillor Carr, Mr Holland confirmed that the 
applicant would ensure that an incident book was completed by all staff.

In response to a question from Councillor May, the Sub-Committee was informed 
that there was one other store 600m away.

Page 5



Councillor Jewell asked about the CCTV system and the size of delivery vehicles, 
and was informed that there was one camera located to the front of the premises 
with between eight and twelve positioned inside. Mr Johnson explained that they 
did not have any control over the size of delivery vehicles. 

Councillor Carr suggested that an additional CCTV camera be placed at the rear of 
the premises where deliveries were made which may allay the concerns of 
residents about the congregation of youths, and also the potential for underage 
sales by proxy. 

Councillor Carr invited all parties to sum up. There were no further comments  and 
the Sub-Committee retired to deliberate the application in private at 10.45am.

After re-convening at 11.05am the Chairman delivered the Sub-Committee’s 
decision. In reaching their decision the Sub-Committee had taken into account the 
report of the Senior Licensing Officer, the verbal and written representations of the 
applicant’s representatives and the written representations of other persons. 
Members had also taken into account the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
and Section 182 Guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

Resolved:

That the application to vary the Premises Licence be granted as follows:-

Activity Days & Hours requested
Sale of Alcohol (off sales) Monday to Sunday 06:00 to 23:00 hours

Christmas Day 09:30  to 15:00 hours

The Sub-Committee considered the conditions suggested within the 
Operating Schedule of the application and believed it was necessary and 
proportionate to impose the following conditions upon the licence as detailed 
in the Applicants application for variation and those offered to the Sub-
Committee as follows: 

General - all four licensing objectives

a) The premises will be managed in line with the four licensing objectives 
and government legislation.

b) All spirits and high value alcohol will be located behind the serving 
counter and out of reach of customers.

The prevention of crime and disorder

c) The CCTV system will be in operation at the premises and recorded 
images shall be retained for a period of 28 days. 

Page 6



d) Cameras shall encompass the inside and outside of all entrances and 
exits to the premises and rear yards, fire exits and all areas where the 
sale/supply of alcohol occurs.

e) The data controller will make available when requested to do so by the 
Police or an authorised officer of the Council (in line with the Data 
Protection Act 1998), downloads of the CCTV footage immediately and 
where not immediately within 48 hours of the request.

Protection of Children from Harm

f) Staff will be trained before making sales of alcohol in their responsibilities 
under the Licensing Act 2003.  This includes the prevention of underage 
sales, the ‘Challenge 25’ policy, proxy sales, acceptable ID and 
intoxicated customers.  Training will be documented and made available 
to the Police and authorised officers of the Council upon reasonable 
request.  Refresher training will take place at least every six months.

g) A register of refusals of alcohol, and of incidents occurring on the 
premises, will be maintained at the premises.  The register shall be 
examined on a regular basis by the duty manager/DPS.  The register will 
be made available for inspection by the Police and other authorised 
officers of the Council upon reasonable request within 48 hours.

h) The premises will adopt a ‘Challenge 25’ policy.  This means that if a 
customer purchasing alcohol appears to be under the age of 25 they will 
be asked for proof of their age, to prove that they are 18 years or older.

i) Posters will be on display advising customers of the ‘Challenge 25’ policy.

j) The only forms of identification that will be accepted at the premises are 
passport, photo-card driving licences and cards bearing the ‘PASS’ 
hologram.

k) A till prompt system will be in operation at the store and used for the 
refusal of all age restricted products. 

7 Application to Vary a Premises Licence - Bridge End Garage, Bridge Street, 
Howden-le-Wear, Crook 

Members:
Councillor C Carr (Chairman)
Councillors I Jewell and P May

The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director Adult and Health 
Services regarding an application to vary a Premises Licence in respect of Bridge 
End Garage, Bridge Street, Howden-le-Wear (for copy see file of Minutes).

Page 7



A copy of the application and supporting documents had been circulated to 
Members, together with additional information provided by the applicant. Members 
were also provided with a larger scale plan of the floor area of the premises.

In response to a question from Councillor Carr, the Senior Licensing Officer 
confirmed that the Police had been consulted on the application as a Responsible 
Authority and had not made representation.

Mr Saggu addressed the Sub-Committee on behalf of the applicant. He explained 
that Bridge End Garage already had a Premises Licence and the applicant wished 
to extend the operating hours in response to business needs. KSC Worldwide Ltd 
had four other sites which traded 24 hours and was therefore experienced in 
managing premises of this nature, adhering to statutory guidelines and best 
practice. The applicants prided themselves on staff training which was reviewed 
regularly. He felt that KSC Worldwide had a robust and responsible approach to 
their existing licence.

In response to questions from Councillor Carr, Mr Saggu advised that the areas 
where alcohol was stored would be secure and the doors would be closed from 
10pm each night; sales would be made through a night serving hatch after this time. 
The front of the store would be lit and the only lighting to the rear of the store would 
be from the chilled cabinets. There were four cameras located in the shop and an 
additional camera would be located in front of the night hatch. Cameras were also 
installed on the forecourt. Councillor Carr asked that the cameras be marked on the 
site plan.  
 
Currently CCTV footage was retained for 16 days but this would be extended to 28 
days. All staff were trained in the operation of the CCTV system and to download 
the data onto disc.

Incident books were kept at all sites and an example had been submitted with the 
additional information provided. Councillor Carr noted that only refusals were 
recorded and asked that staff be asked to record incidents as well. Mr Saggu 
agreed to take this on board.

In response to a question from Councillor Jewell about training, Mr Middleton, the 
Operations Manager outlined the ‘buddy programme’ for new staff. Councillor 
Jewell referred to the sample training questionnaires used by the company which 
he felt were superficial and not robust enough to test an employee’s knowledge and 
understanding. This view was shared by Councillor Kellett. Mr Middleton explained 
that the questionnaires were devised by a professional who trained Designated 
Premises Supervisors but welcomed the advice of the Sub-Committee as they were 
seeking to continue to improve and employ best practice.

Following further questions from Councillor Carr, the Member was informed that 
alcohol would not be sold after 10pm until the hatch was fitted, and there had been 
no incidents previously before 10pm. Representations had inferred that there had 
been incidents with regard to the sale of alcohol but Mr Saggu advised that he was 
not aware of any related to the garage which had not been contacted by any 
authorities, including the Police in this regard. 

Page 8



Councillor Carr asked for the proportion of alcohol sales against fuel and food. Mr 
Middleton explained that this depended upon the site location. At present alcohol 
represented 15% of the total sales across all stores but he could not provide the 
information specifically for Bridge End Garage until the store extended its hours of 
operation. Foodstuffs would also be on sale 24 hours.

Councillor Jewell noted that this was a change to operations in a rural location and 
asked if a feasibility study had been carried out. Mr Saggu confirmed that a formal 
study had not been undertaken but their decision to make application to vary the 
Premises Licence had been based on anecdotal discussions with customers and on 
there being no other facilities in the local area that offered a 24 hour service.       

In summary Mr Saggu stated that as a business KSC Worldwide had always tried to 
operate responsibly and sensibly within the licensing legislation. There were 
challenges for all forecourt operators and if granted the variation to the Premises 
Licence would extend what was already offered. He assured the Sub-Committee 
that the business would be managed responsibly to minimise the impact on 
neighbours and the local community. The garage was proud to be part of the 
community and were willing to accept conditions proposed by the Sub-Committee.

   

At 11.55am the Sub-Committee retired to deliberate the application in private. After 
re-convening at 12.10pm the Chairman delivered the Sub-Committee’s decision. In 
reaching their decision the Sub-Committee had taken into account the report of the 
Senior Licensing Officer, the verbal and written representations of the applicant’s 
representatives, and the written representations of other persons. Members had 
also taken into account the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Section 
182 Guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

Resolved:

That the application to vary the Premises Licence be granted as follows:-

Activity Days & Hours requested
Sale of Alcohol (off the 

premises)
Monday to Sunday: 00:00 – 24:00hrs

The Sub-Committee considered the existing conditions and the suggested 
conditions. The Sub-Committee believed it was necessary and proportionate 
to impose the following conditions upon the licence:

General - all four licensing objectives

a) The premises will be managed in line with the four licensing objectives 
and government legislation. 

The prevention of crime and disorder

b) The CCTV system will be in operation at the premises and recorded 
images shall be retained for a period of 28 days.  

Page 9



c) Cameras shall encompass the inside and outside of all entrances and 
exits to the premises and rear yards, fire exits and all areas where the 
sale/supply of alcohol occurs.

d) The data controller will make available when requested to do so by 
the police or an authorised officer of the Council (in line with the Data 
Protection Act 1998), downloads of the CCTV footage immediately 
and where not immediately within 24 hours of the request. 

e) A register of refusals of alcohol, and of incidents occurring on the 
premises, will be maintained at the premises.  The register shall be 
examined on a regular basis by the duty manager/DPS.  The register 
will be made available for inspection by the Police and other 
authorised officers of the Council upon reasonable request.

Public safety

f) Between the hours of 22:00hrs and 06:30hrs the premises will be 
closed to the public and all sales will take place via the serving hatch.

The prevention of public nuisance

g) A notice will be on display asking customers to respect the neighbours 
when leaving the premises.

The protection of children from harm

h) The premises will adopt a ‘Challenge 25’ policy.  This means that if a 
customer purchasing alcohol appears to be under the age of 25 they 
will be asked for proof of their age, to prove that they are 18 years or 
older.

i) Posters will be on display advising customers of the ‘Challenge 25’ 
policy.

j) The only forms of identification that will be accepted at the premises 
are passport, photo-card driving licences and cards bearing the 
‘PASS’ hologram.

k) Staff will be trained before making sales of alcohol in their 
responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003.  This includes the 
prevention of underage sales, the ‘Challenge 25’ policy, proxy sales, 
acceptable ID and intoxicated customers.  Training will be 
documented and made available to the Police and authorised officers 
of the Council upon reasonable request.  Refresher training will take 
place at least every 12 months.

l) A till prompt system will be in operation at the store and used for the 
refusal of all age restricted products. 

Page 10



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee held in Committee Room 1B, 
County Hall, Durham on Friday 20 January 2017 at 11.30 am

Present:

Councillor B Kellett (Chairman)

Members of the Committee:
Councillors C Hampson and P May

Also Present:
H Johnson – Licensing Team Leader
S Buston – Solicitor (Litigation) DCC
Inspector R Stockdale – Durham Constabulary
Sgt C Dickinson – Durham Constabulary

1 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

2 Application for Summary Licence Review - The Bridge Inn, 1 Gordon Lane, 
Ramshaw, Bishop Auckland 

Consideration was given to an application received from Durham Constabulary for 
interim steps to be taken prior to a review hearing in relation to the premises licence 
for The Bridge Inn, Ramshaw, Bishop Auckland (for copy see file of Minutes). 

The Licensing Team Leader advised that the Licensing Authority had received a 
summary licence review application under Section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 
from Durham Constabulary on the afternoon of 18 January 2017 in respect of the 
Bridge Inn, Ramshaw. In accordance with the provisions of the Act the application 
must be considered within 48 hours of receipt.

The Licensing Team Leader informed Members of the interim steps the Sub-
Committee could consider in accordance with the legislation, and a full hearing 
would be required within 28 days (by 15 February 2017). A Notice and the 
Certificate submitted by Durham Constabulary had been served through the post 
box at the premises as the premises were closed, and a number of attempts had 
been made to contact the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) without success.

Inspector R Stockdale and Sgt C Dickinson were in attendance to give evidence on 
behalf of Durham Constabulary. Members were informed that on 16 January 2016 
the injured party had attended the premises to collect wages owed to him from 
before Christmas. The injured party alleged that the PLH had declined to pay and 

Page 11



therefore the injured party had stated that he would no longer work at the premises. 
At this point the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) allegedly punched the 
injured party to the side of the face. It was alleged that the PLH had a metal bar and 
the injured party was chased  to his car.

The injured party immediately drove to the local Police Station to report the incident 
and sought medical help.  Three people had been arrested and two were currently 
on Police bail. The DPS was suspected of assault and the PLH of affray.  

Following a request for clarification from the Solicitor, Inspector Stockdale 
confirmed that the Police sought immediate suspension of the Premises Licence 
and the removal of the DPS as this was a very serious allegation. The actions were 
in contravention of the crime and disorder objective.

Following a question from Councillor Kellett, the Member was informed that medical 
evidence may be presented at the full review hearing.

At 11.40am the Sub-Committee retired to deliberate the application in private. After 
re-convening at 11.50am the Chairman delivered the Sub-Committee’s decision. In 
reaching their decision the Sub-Committee had taken into account the application 
and certificate submitted by Durham Constabulary, and the verbal representations 
of the Police Officers.

Resolved:

That the Premises Licence be suspended with immediate effect and the DPS be 
removed from the Licence.  

   

Page 12



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee held in Farnham Room 1/52-54, 
County Hall, Durham on Wednesday 25 January 2017 at 9.45 am

Present:

Councillor C Carr (Chairman)

Members of the Committee:
Councillors B Graham, C Hampson and J Maitland

Also Present:
C Pattinson (Council’s Legal Officer)

1 Apologies for Absence 

There were no apologies for absence.

2 Declarations of Interest 

There were no decalrations of interest.

3 Application for Summary Licence Review - The Bridge Inn, Ramshaw, Bishop 
Auckland 

The Legal Officer informed Members that a Sub-Committee met on Friday 20 
January 2017 to consider a summary licence review application by Durham 
Constabulary under Section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003.  Members determined 
that it was appropriate to put in place interim steps in relation to the Premises. They 
therefore suspended the premises licence and removed the Designated Premises 
Supervisor.

On 23 January 2017 at 10.10 am the Premises Licence holder exercised their right 
to request a review of the interim steps imposed by the Sub-Committee on 20 
January 2017. When such an application is received, the licensing authority is 
under a statutory obligation to undertake the review within 48 hours of receiving the 
request. 

Although the Sub-Committee had been convened within the statutory timescale, it 
had not been possible to secure the attendance of all relevant parties. As the 
hearing could not proceed in the absence of the parties, members were requested 
to consider adjourning the hearing until 13.00, when all parties would be in 
attendance. 

Page 13



Resolved:

That the hearing be adjourned until 13.00 hours on 25 January 2017.

Page 14



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee held in Council Chamber, County 
Hall, Durham on Wednesday 25 January 2017 at 1.00 pm

Present:

Councillor C Carr (Chairman)

Members of the Committee:
Councillors B Graham, C Hampson and J Maitland

Also Present:
G Proud (Council’s Solicitor)
H Johnson (Licensing Team Leader)
K Coulson-Patel (Observer)
Sgt C Dickenson (Durham Constabulary) 
Insp R Stockdale (Durham Constabulary)
Mr J Cunningham (Senior) (Premises Licence Holder) - The Bridge Inn
Mr J Cunningham (Junior) (Designated Premises Supervisor) - The Bridge Inn
Mr B Cunningham (Son) – The Bridge Inn
L Griffiths (Representing the Applicant) – The Bridge Inn
N Smith (Solicitor – Squire Patton & Bogg) – One Stop
G Anderson (Area Manager) – One Stop 
S Marklew (Trading Law Manager) – One Stop
Mr and Mrs McDermott (Other Persons) – One Stop 

1 Apologies for Absence 

There were no apologies for absence.

2 Substitute Members 

There were no substitute Members.

3 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

4 Application for Summary Licence Review - The Bridge Inn, Ramshaw. Bishop 
Auckland 

Members:
Councillor C Carr (Chair)
Councillors B Graham and J Maitland

Page 15



All parties were advised that with the agreement of the parties, the Sub-Committee 
had met at 9.45 am on 25 January 2017 to comply with legislation as the licensing 
authority is required to conduct the review within 48 hours of receiving the 
representation by the Premises Licence Holder. 

The only time the licensing authority could get all parties, members and a suitable 
venue to hear the application was 1.00 pm which was outside the 48 hour period. 
Members were assured that the delay of 3 hours should not cause the Premises 
Licence Holder any prejudice; the Premises Licence Holder had been advised of 
the meeting and had agreed to the short adjournment; therefore Members 
unanimously agreed to adjourn the hearing until 1.00 pm and nothing had been 
discussed.

The Licensing Team Leader informed Members that the Sub-Committee had met 
on Friday 20 January 2017 to consider a summary licence review application under 
Section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 from Durham Constabulary. 

A Notice and the Certificate submitted by Durham Constabulary had been served 
through the post box at the premises as the premises were closed, and a number of 
attempts had been made to contact the Premises Licence Holder without success. 

The Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee went ahead on 20 January 2017 and 
Members agreed to put in place interim steps which were to suspend the premises 
licence and remove the Designated Premises Supervisor.

An application from the Premises Licence Holder had been received on Monday 23 
January 2017 at 10.10 am to exercise their right to a review of the interim steps.

Members were asked to determine whether to keep the interim steps in place; to 
modify the conditions of the premises licence or to exclude the sale of alcohol by 
retail from the scope of the licence. A full hearing would be held on Tuesday 14 
February 2017 and consultation with responsible authorities would end on 2 
February 2017.

Sgt C Dickenson from Durham Constabulary representing the Applicant indicated 
that the Police had received a report concerning an incident which resulted in 
serious injuries. Investigations were still ongoing and they had not made the 
decision lightly to apply for a review of the premises licence under section 53A of 
the Licensing Act 2003 for interim steps.

The Chairman sought clarification on the injuries sustained.

The Police responded that the gentleman sustained a fracture to his left jaw. He 
attended Bishop Auckland hospital then Durham and Sunderland for which he has 
to return on a weekly basis to assess how the injury is healing. There is a possibility 
he could need a plate which would cause facial disfigurement. They had asked for 
medical evidence which they hoped would be available for the meeting on the 14 
February 2017. 

Page 16



L Griffiths, speaking on behalf of the Licence Holder had no questions of the Police 
and stated that there was no evidence.

L Griffiths then went on to say that she had advised Mr Cunningham, the Licence 
Holder to contact Mr R Arnott of Ward Hadaway Solicitors for legal representation 
but unfortunately he was not available which was why she was representing Mr 
Cunningham today.

She advised Members that the advert in the Northern Echo had a damaging effect 
to the business. She referred to the statement by the Police where it was assumed 
that they were from the travelling community and associated with the travelling 
community from Darlington, as they were taken to Darlington police station. They 
are not gypsies and have lived on the site for the last 16 years.

She reassured everyone that the family had not had a single conviction and that Mr 
Cunningham was hoping to open up the premises at the weekend so that he could 
get his business back. L Griffiths was willing to place an advert in the newspaper to 
try and get his business back and as Mr Arnott stated you are innocent until proven 
guilty.

They were asking to have their doors open again on Friday for the weekend before 
any further damage was caused to the business.

Sgt Dickenson advised that the report did not come to Darlington Police office, so 
there was no links at all to the Darlington travelling community.

L Griffiths responded that they had been taken to Darlington police station and that 
there had been recent bad publicity about gypsies in Darlington. The Chairman 
confirmed that they had not seen any press articles.

At this point, Members were provided with a number of documents that the Licence 
Holder had provided which included a copy of the recent press article about the 
premises. Members were given time to read the additional documentation.

The Chairman referred to the documentation and indicated that the decision to 
appoint a legal representative rested with the Licence Holder. Any press articles 
were from the media and not the Sub-Committee so the appropriate weight would 
be applied, this would also apply to the references which had not been verified.

L Griffiths indicated that Mr Cunningham Senior and Mr Cunningham Junior both 
deny all charges. It is a false allegation by an ex member of staff. The police 
statements indicated that they are guilty but they maintain their innocence. She 
stated that the statement should not be put to the Sub-Committee unless they are 
charged or convicted.

The Chairman asked how the injury was sustained and when Mr Cunningham 
Senior and Mr Cunningham Junior were made aware of the injuries.

L Griffiths responded that the first they knew of the incident was when they were 
arrested.

Page 17



Mr Cunningham Junior read out the statement by the Chief Superintendent and 
stated that this should read alleged and painted them in a very bad light.

The Chairman responded that there would be a full review hearing on the 14 
February 2017.

L Griffiths indicated that they were on bail until 10 March 2017 and the full review 
hearing would be a month before this date.

The Chairman advised that the Licensing Act 2003 stated that the hearing had to 
be held within 28 days.

Members and Officers discussed the possibility of adjourning the meeting on the 14 
February 2017. The Solicitor expressed concerns regarding an adjournment of the 
review hearing as Section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 has strict deadlines that 
must be adhered to. She stated it was not immediately apparent if the Licensing Act 
2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 provided an opportunity to adjourn the hearing 
under section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 but she would confirm this outside of 
the hearing.

All parties were asked to sum up.

The Licensing Team Leader indicated that this was an interim steps hearing and 
the options to Members were to maintain the interim steps; modify or add conditions 
to the licence; exclude a licensable activity from the licence; remove the designated 
premises supervisor; suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months.

In summing up, Sgt Dickenson indicated that it was a serious allegation and there 
was concern for public safety as the behaviour was below what was expected. 
Three arrests had been made and one released without any action. The other two 
were on police bail while investigations were ongoing.

L Griffiths indicated that nothing would have changed before the full hearing as Mr 
Cunningham Senior and Mr Cunningham Junior were out on bail until 10 March 
2017.

At 2.00 pm the Sub-Committee retired to deliberate the application in private. After 
re-convening at 2.10 pm the Chairman delivered the Sub-Committee’s decision. In 
determining the application the Sub-Committee had considered the verbal and 
written representations of Durham Constabulary and the Licence Holder and 
Designated Premises Supervisor. 

Resolved: That the interim steps remain in place.

L Griffiths asked if Members would consider removing the interim steps if they 
agreed to put in place a new Designated Premises Supervisor and agreed that the 
Premises Licence Holder had no involvement in the business.

The Chairman indicated that the Sub-Committee had made their decision.

Page 18



The Licensing Team Leader advised that they could apply for a further review 
hearing against the interim steps and that would be heard within 48 hours of 
receipt.

Sgt C Dickenson and Insp R Stokdale (Durham Constabulary) left the meeting

5 Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence - One Stop, Unit 1, North 
Road, Catchgate, Co Durham 

Members:
Councillor C Carr (Chair)
Councillors B Graham and C Hampson

Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Adults & Health 
Services regarding an application for the grant of a Premises Licence in respect of 
One Stop, Unit 1, North Road, Catchgate, Co. Durham (for copy see file of 
Minutes).

A copy of the application and supporting documents had been circulated to 
Members.

Representations from ‘other persons’ had been received from the McDermott 
family. A petition had also been received from Catchgate Residents, a copy of 
which had been circulated with the agenda and Members were asked to attach the 
appropriate weight to the petition.

The applicant’s agent entered into discussions with Durham Constabulary within the 
consultation period which had resulted in the applicant amending their original 
application to change the commencement of the sale of alcohol from 06:00 am to 
07:00 am Monday to Sunday and include the additional proposed conditions, a 
copy of which had been circulated with the agenda.

Additional information had been provided by the Applicant’s Agent, a copy of which 
had been circulated to Members and all parties prior to the meeting.

The Chairman sought clarification if the premises intended to open on Christmas 
Day. The Licensing Team Leader advised Members that they did not intend to open 
on Christmas Day.

Mr B McDermott, an objector indicated that the premises were located in a 
residential area and he lived opposite. The liquor licence to 11.00 pm would be 
detrimental to their lives. There would be headlights shining into their property, 
noise and problems with youths in the area which had just got under control. Their 
son currently lived with them who was on call and had to get up early on a morning. 
Delivery vans would be in and out of the premises all day and evening. They had a 
caravan that they had to put on the road when hitching up and there was a bus stop 
just down from the car park entrance and 11.00 pm was too late. The Esso station 
was away from residential properties and other shops in the area closed at 9.00 pm 
or 10.00 pm.

Page 19



Councillor Maitland sought clarification if Mr and Mrs McDermott were concerned 
about the premises opening until 11.00 pm or the selling of alcohol to this time.

Mr McDermott responded that they were concerned about both, but mostly the 
alcohol which should be limited to 9.00 pm.

Councillor Graham sought clarification on the location of Mr and Mrs McDermott’s 
property in relation to the premises. Members were advised of the location of their 
home.

N Smith, the Applicant’s Solicitor stated that the application was for the grant of an 
alcohol licence only. The premises are a retail store and not an off licence and are 
located in the former R.A.O.B club which had a club certificate for alcohol until 
11.30 pm and 12.00 midnight on a Friday and Saturday.

They had agreed to change the start time of the licence to promote the licensing 
objectives. One Stop are an experienced operator and there was no evidence that 
the granting of the licence would cause crime and disorder or a public nuisance. 
There were no representations from the Police who have access to crime statistics. 
They propose to open 07.00 am to 11.00 pm daily and they were happy for 
Christmas Day to be excluded. There were a number of additional conditions that 
had been mediated with the Police and a summary of these could be seen at page 
32 of the report.

One Stop was a general store and not an off licence and nine out of ten 
transactions would not include the sale of alcohol. One Stop Shop operates over 
700 stores nationally with robust procedures and measures in place for proxy sales 
and how they would deal with the congregation of youths was summarised in the 
circulated statements.

Hartfordshire Council had reviewed the company’s policies and had confirmed that 
they met the licencing objectives.

She referred to the circulated photographs of the premises and indicated that there 
would be a car park to the front of the premises and deliveries would be to the side 
of the premises and this was where the bins would also be stored.

She then referred to the plan of the internal layout of the premises showing 
Members the location of the CCTV cameras which would also be located outside 
the premises and would be of high definition with a monitor at the door so 
customers could see that CCTV was in operation. The Manager would also have a 
monitoring desk for the CCTV cameras.

Planning had granted permission for the retail shop from 7.00 am to 11.00 pm 7 
days a week.

The company would be spending £220,000 to fit out the shop and the landlord 
would also be investing additional money. The lease would be for a 15 year period 
so it was a long term investment. They were looking to recruit local staff with the 

Page 20



exception of an experienced manager and shift supervisor, there would be 13 staff 
employed in total from the local area.

Members had been provided with a map which showed the location of other stores 
in the area which operated from 7.00 am until 11.00 pm and Tesco was open until 
12.30 am so alcohol was already available in the area at times in the council’s 
framework policy.

She then referred to the area and that there were 1500 homes and the only 
representation had been received from the McDermott family. The company 
participate in the local community where they have stores and have recently made 
donations and painted a fence in the community.

She referred to the letter from Mr and Mrs McDermott. She stated that the company 
worked hard to prevent representations and the concerns regarding deliveries and 
traffic had been considered as part of the planning process. With regards to anti-
social behaviour the company would have CCTV installed and the conditions of the 
licence would include that images be provided on request, staff would monitor the 
CCTV and proxy sales was part of the written policy.

The Store Manager would work with the police and community support officers and 
they would ensure that the store looked attractive both internally and externally. 
They wanted a store that people wanted to come to and was why they had robust 
measures in place.

With regard to under-age drinking, they would have challenge 25 as a condition of 
the licence and staff would be trained on induction, and refresher training would be 
provided as well as signage throughout the store. There would also be a prompt on 
the electronic tills which would be interactive, rather than just a flash up on the 
screen. This system would also record challenges and refusals, which would be 
reviewed by the manager and regional manager.

Mr Anderson, Area Manager for One Stop Stores Limited indicated that he was 
responsible for two other stores and there had been no problems with these stores.

N Smith referred to the petition on page 26 of the pack and indicated that the DH1 
address was some distance from the store and there were numerous names which 
were similar handwriting from the same address which could be double or triple 
counting. Their (the company) position was that that there were robust measures in 
place which would address the concerns, no other representations had been 
received which would suggest that the store was appropriate for the sale of alcohol 
and she asked that the licence be granted subject to the agreed conditions.

The Chairman referred to the problems with the tills in Tesco which Durham County 
Council had raised with Tesco.

N Smith responded that One Stop was separate to Tesco so had different style tills.

The Chairman responded that they had taken on board what the authority required 
i.e. an incident record and a number of CCTV cameras especially outside the store. 

Page 21



He was not sure about the hours of deliveries and the bottle bins at the side of the 
premises especially being used after 9.00 pm.

N Smith responded that the bins would not be bottle bins as they were not an off-
licence and the bins would solely be used for packaging. With regard to deliveries 
these would be various times but they would complete a risk assessment to 
establish the best time for deliveries. Alcohol would be delivered as part of the 
general delivery which would be 2 or 3 times a week, the only early morning 
delivery would be the newspapers.

The Chairman asked if deliveries could be between 9.00 am and 9.00 pm if 
possible.

N Smith responded that their normal practise was not to have deliveries outside the 
opening hours of the store; it was a store so was different to a public house. The 
only exception would be the delivery of newspapers and they wouldn’t normally 
have any deliveries after 5.00 pm.

In Summing up, Mr McDermott indicated that he had done the petition himself and 
nobody signed for anyone else with the exception of 2 elderly people and there 
were no duplicates in the petition. They had lived in their property for 7 years and 
there had been no issues with traffic from the club as the car park was only used on 
a Sunday morning.

N Smith indicated that she had nothing further to add except that no 
representations had been received from responsible authorities.

At 2.55 pm the Sub-Committee retired to deliberate the application in private. After 
re-convening at 3.05 pm the Chairman delivered the Sub-Committee’s decision. In 
determining the application the Sub-Committee had considered the report of the 
Corporate Director of Adults and Health Services and the verbal and written 
representations of the applicant and other persons. Members had also taken into 
account the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Section 182 Guidance 
issued by the Secretary of State.

Resolved:

That the application be granted as follows:-

Activities Days & Hours Requested
Sale of Alcohol (off sales) 07.00 – 23.00 hrs Monday to Sunday

It is noted that the operating schedule refers to the premises opening hours as 
06.00 hours. The Applicant is reminded that should the premises open at this time, 
they will be operating outside of the planning permission.

The conditions agreed between the Applicant and Durham Constabulary and 
approved by the Sub-Committee are outlined below:-

Page 22



The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

I. All Staff shall be trained in the sale of alcohol. Training shall take place twice 
annually. Records of this training shall be maintained. The records will be made 
available to officers and responsible authorities when requested.

II. CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing 
pictures of evidential quality in all lighting conditions.

III. Cameras shall encompass the inside and outside of all entrances and exits to 
the premises and rear yards, fire exits and all areas where the sale/supply of 
alcohol occurs.

IV. Equipment must be maintained in good working order, be correctly times and 
date stamped and kept for a period of 28 days.

V. The Premises Licence Holder must ensure at all times the Designated Premises 
Supervisor or appointed member of staff is capable and competent at viewing 
the CCTV and downloading the footage onto a disc, hard drive or memory stick 
when requested to do so by the police/local authority within a time scale agreed 
to by officers and appointed staff.

VI. The recording equipment and discs/memory sticks shall be kept in a secure 
environment under the control of the Designated Premises Supervisor or other 
responsible named individual.

Public Safety

VII. An electronic incident log will be maintained. The log will be made available to 
officers and responsible authorities when requested.

The Protection of Children from Harm

VIII. A proof of age policy in place for people under 25 years of age via the 
Challenge 25 scheme.

IX. The only forms of identification we will accept are a passport, a photo driving 
licence and ‘PASS’ hologram I.D.

X. An electronic refusal register will record all refused sales of alcohol, including 
attempted proxy sales.

XI. Spirits will be shelved behind the counter.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee held in Committee Room 2, County 
Hall, Durham on Tuesday 14 February 2017 at 10.00 am

Present:

Councillor J Maitland (Chair)

Members of the Committee:
Councillors O Gunn, J Hart, I Jewell and J Lee

Also Present:
K Coulson-Patel (Council’s Solicitor)
H Johnson (Licensing Team Leader)
S Mooney (Solicitor - Durham Constabulary)
Sgt C Dickenson (Durham Constabulary)
Insp R Stockdale (Durham Constabulary)
Det. Constable Haythorne-thwaite (Durham Constabulary)
S Smith (Sintons LLP Solicitors on behalf of the Premises Licence Holder)
J Cunningham Senior (Premises Licence Holder)
J Cunningham Junior (Designated Premises Supervisor)
J Robson (Employee of the Bridge Inn - Witness)
A Mellor (Employee of the Bridge Inn - Witness)
K Jameson (Employee of the Bridge Inn - Witness)

1 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors B Glass and B Kellett.

2 Substitute Members 

Councillors J Hart and I Jewell were substitute members for Councillors B Glass 
and B Kellett.

3 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

4 Application for the Review of a Premises Licence - The Bridge Inn, 1 Gordon 
Lane, Ramshaw, Bishop Auckland 

Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Adult and Health 
Services which asked Members to consider and determine an application by 
Durham Constabulary to review the premises licence in respect of The Bridge Inn, 1 
Gordon Lane, Ramshaw, Bishop Auckland which is currently licensed to supply 

Page 25



alcohol for consumption both on and off the premises and for the provision of 
regulated entertainment (for copy of report, see file of minutes).

A copy of the licence, location plan and supporting documents had been circulated.

Addition documentation had been received from Durham Constabulary and the 
Licence Holder, a copy of which had been circulated to Members prior to the 
meeting.

On 18 January 2017 the Licensing Authority received an application and supporting 
certificate under Section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 from Durham Constabulary 
where it was required to consider whether it was necessary to take interim steps 
pending determination of the full review of the premises license within 48 hours of 
receipt of the application.

On 20 January 2017 the Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee met to consider the 
application and any necessary interim steps. It was decided to remove the 
designated premises supervisor from the licence and to suspend the premises 
licence with immediate effect.

On 23 January 2017 the Premises Licence Holder submitted a representation to 
review the decision of the Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee made on 20 January 
2017.

On 25 January 2017 the Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee met to consider the 
representation and decided to continue with the interim steps which were to remove 
the Designated Premises Supervisor and suspend the premises licence until the full 
review hearing.

The Licensing Team Leader advised the Sub-Committee that she had received 
correspondence from the Premises Licence Holder’s Solicitor who had been in 
conversation with Durham Constabulary to propose that the removal of Mr J 
Cunningham Junior as the Designated Premises Supervisor be maintained and 
they would offer a condition that Mr J Cunningham Junior have no involvement or 
management of The Bridge Inn until such time as the investigation currently being 
undertaken by Durham Constabulary had been concluded.

The Chairman sought confirmation from the Premises Licence Holder that he was 
in agreement with the proposal which Mr Cunningham confirmed.

S Smith the Premises Licence Holder’s Solicitor indicated that the review hearing 
had been brought about by Durham Constabulary due to an alleged incident 
involving an employee who had alleged that he had been assaulted by Mr 
Cunningham Junior and threatened by Mr Cunningham Senior which her clients 
had denied and had said was totally fabricated.

The investigation was ongoing and no charges had been made and her clients 
should be treated as innocent until proven guilty according to law. She 
acknowledged that action had to be taken against a serious assault but this had to 

Page 26



be balanced against the need to preserve the livelihood of those involved. Members 
were asked to consider the letters of support that the Licence Holder had submitted. 

S Smith confirmed that she had spoken to Mr Mooney to see if they could come to 
a compromise so that the business could operate as they could not close for 
months while the investigation was ongoing.

They had suggested a compromise to allow the business to operate but this was 
not an admission of guilt.

Councillor Jewell asked how they would ensure that Mr Cunningham Junior would 
have no involvement with the business.

S Smith responded that the business was in the name of Mr Cunningham Senior 
and he dealt with deliveries, orders and the opening of the premises. Staff were 
capable of running the premises and the only involvement that Mr Cunningham 
Junior had with the premises was the cleaning of the lines and did not serve behind 
the bar.

One of the current employees at The Bridge Inn had already undertaken the 
personal licence holder’s course and was in the process of applying for her 
personal licence. They hoped she would receive her personal licence within the 
next seven days and they would not sell alcohol until this time and she had been 
named as the Designated Premises Supervisor.

S Mooney, speaking on behalf of Durham Constabulary indicated that Durham 
Constabulary were agreeable to the proposal put forward by the Premises Licence 
Holder. He stated that the investigation was still ongoing but no charges had been 
laid. The investigation could take some time to conclude and they had to weigh 
everything up and take everything into account and a balanced approach had been 
taken. Their greatest concern was with the alleged actions of the Designated 
Premises Supervisor who was the initial aggressor and who’s role was crucial in the 
running of the premises.

Durham Constabulary still had concerns of the Premises Licence Holder but the 
role of the Premises Licence Holder was different to a Designated Premises 
Supervisor and the allegations against him were lesser and they acknowledged that 
he needed to be on site in order to run the business. 

Durham Constabulary would continue to closely monitor the premises and would 
have the option to bring further review proceedings if necessary.

S Smith indicated that there had been no history of violence at the Premises since 
the Cunningham’s had taken over the running of the premises and she would not 
expect any issues going forward.

At 10.15 am the Sub-Committee retired to deliberate the application in private. After 
re-convening at 10.20 am the Chairman delivered the Sub-Committee’s decision. In 
determining the application the Sub-Committee had considered the report of the 
Licensing Team Leader and the verbal and written representations of the Applicant 

Page 27



and the Licence Holder. Members had also taken into account the Council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy and Section 182 Guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State.

Resolved: (i) That the suspension on the licence be lifted.

(ii) That the removal of Mr J Cunningham Junior as the Designated Premises 
Supervisor be upheld.

(iii) That the following condition be added to the licence:-

Mr J Cunningham Junior is to have no involvement in the running or management 
of The Bridge Inn until such time as the investigation, currently being undertaken by 
Durham Police, has been concluded and confirmation has been given in writing by 
the appropriate Police Officer that he may resume his involvement in the business, 
such confirmation not to be unreasonably withheld.

Page 28



Page 29

Agenda Item 5



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meetings held on 20 December 2016, and 20 January, 25 January and 14 February 2017
	Minutes , 20/01/2017 Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee
	Minutes , 25/01/2017 Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee
	Minutes , 25/01/2017 Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee 1.00pm
	Minutes , 14/02/2017 Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

	5 Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence - The Distillery, 1-2 Red Rose Terrace, Chester-le-Street
	Report Part 2 - The Distillery


